RFP No. 071I9200234

Addendum #2

Bidder Questions and Answers (Set 1)

NOTE: 
New Due Date for Proposals is 3:00 PM, EST, Tuesday, July 21, 2009.
New Deadline for Vendor Questions (Set 2) has been extended to 3PM EST, July 7, 2009.
Responses to Questions 1, 11, 40, 91, 98, 100, 101, and 127 will be posted in a future addendum.
	
	RFP Reference
	Vendor Question
	State of Michigan Response

	1
	
	Regarding the proposals for work, would the State consider contracting with multiple organizations?  
	The State reserves to award this contract to more than one bidder, however the State does not expect to do so for this procurement.

	2
	
	In particular would the State be receptive to contracting with one party to perform Phase 1 (Project Planning) and Phase 2 (Requirements Verification and Validation) only?  

If so, would there be an opportunity to provide oversight on subsequent phases should an organization be selected to perform work for Phase 1 and Phase 2 only?
	No.

	3
	
	Can the State provide the names of the vendors that responded to the RFI for this project that was issued on May 28, 2009?  In absence of a Vendor Conference, this will be helpful to identify possible subcontractors and primes for interested vendors.
	Please see Addendum 1

	4
	
	Per the estimated timeline of the RFP, the Bid Due Date is July 10.  Will the State extend the Bid Due date by two weeks to allow additional time for vendor responses?  We believe the extension will allow the vendors the needed time to develop and present more responsive proposals to the State.
	Yes, the State has extended the due date for the proposal to 3:00 PM, EST, Tuesday, July 21, 2009. A more detailed RFP schedule will be posted as a future addendum, and will include updated anticipated oral presentation dates.


	5
	
	How many total accounts are in your current system?  Please show a breakdown by category (active, inactive, depleted, etc.).
	As of May 2009, there are approximately 100,000 total accounts in the categories listed below: 

Inactive (not using benefits yet), 35,000

Active  (currently using benefits) 20,000

Closed  45,000



	6
	
	How many new accounts are expected to be added annually for the next three years?  How many will be applied for on-line versus by mail?
	Approximately 3,500;
80% online 20% paper

	7
	
	How many beneficiaries are currently matriculating?
	Approximately 20,000

	8
	
	How many public colleges/universities are currently sending invoices?
	45

	9
	
	How many private and out-of-state colleges/universities are currently sending invoices?
	Approximately 1,500

	10
	
	What percentage of invoices are received electronically versus by paper?
	Approximately 3% currently process electronically.

	11
	
	How many individual pieces of mail are received into the program each year?
	A response to this question will be posted in a future addendum.

	12
	
	How many individual pieces of mail are sent out of the program each year?
	Approximately 115,000

	13
	
	How many incoming daily calls are answered by program staff?
	Approximately 250

	14
	
	How many outgoing daily calls are made by program staff?
	Approximately 110

	15
	
	How many individuals (FTEs) make up your program staff?  Please provide a breakdown by job responsibility.
	Approximately 12 FTE’s

	16
	
	Is it your intent to internally provide all operational personnel to run the program or should the vendor show costs for this?
	Yes.  As an option the bidder may also submit an alternative pricing model for State’s consideration.

	17
	
	What actuarial resources will be made available to the vendor during development of account cancellation formulas and similar financial matters?
	The actuary will provide guidance as needed.

	18
	
	Regarding RFP page 115, how should the vendor respond if it is proposing an ASP solution that includes existing software (currently serving another state) that will be modified to meet the specifics of the Michigan program?
	The ASP solution is considered similar to the configurable package, except it is hosted by the vendor. The vendor shall respond to the requirement as per instructions given for configurable package on Page 114.  



	19
	RFP Pg#12 (Project Request)
	As per RFP, current contract period is for 3 Years.  Is the entire contract period 3 Years for implementing the product to production or this includes implementation and followed by maintenance.  

Please clarify the schedule by when the State wants a production ready system?
	The contract term is independent of the development and implementation timeframes.  

The State desires to have a production ready system by September 1, 2010.  However the vendor may propose alternative time frames based on their prior experience implementing similar systems.   

	20
	General
	What is State’s requirement for target implementation date of the system? (for custom build solution)
	See answer to Question #19

	21
	General
	Please confirm that implementation of OSG functionality is after the current 3 Year contract period. 
	The implementation date for optional OSG functionality is not known at this time.

	22
	RFP Pg#14 (Current System)
	RFP states, “The new system shall provide common functionality and a common interface for higher education institutions…..”  Please confirm that the scope of this RFP for common functionality is only towards functionality common between MET & OSG programs and not with any other programs.
	Yes.

	23
	General
	Has the State evaluated any existing COTS products as possible fits for this RFP?  If yes, please identify the name of those COTS products.


	No.

	24
	COTS vs. Custom
	What is State’s preference with respect to COTS vs custom built solution?
	The State prefers a configurable solution but will consider any solution that will meet its needs. 



	25
	General
	What is the State’s preference with respect to technology platform for Custom Build Solution (J2EE or .NET)?


	Please refer to the platforms that are approved by Enterprise Architecture team as provided in the RFP.



	26
	Interfaces
	What are the interface systems/programs of MET. Please list these external systems and the nature of interface with MET
	Please refer to “Interfaces” in Exhibit C, starting on Page 127 of the RFP.



	27
	Interfaces
	Please confirm that the changes to interface systems/programs will be State’s responsibility
	The vendor shall work with State staff to identify any changes required to the SOM systems.  The interface requirements are identified in Exhibit C, 8.1 through 8.7 



	28
	Appendix B & C
	Are these final business requirements or do you expect Vendor to perform requirements gathering and validate and update the existing requirements
	These are a complete list of high level functional requirements.  The vendor is expected to validate these as identified in Section 1.101, In Scope.



	29
	Work Location
	Can vendor allowed to perform work from offsite location?
	See Section 5.017, Place of Performance



	30
	Phase II – Pg22
	What kind of data exchange(import & export) will be required between the new Bureau system and the other systems? Please indicate whether these will be file driven interchanges or direct Database interface or will the interchange be negotiated using API’s?
	The information for known data exchanges required is listed in Exhibit C, 8.3, and 8.4, pg 128.  The vendor is expected to go through the requirements and validate these requirements as explained in Phase II, pg 22. 

The method of data exchanges in the new system may be file, direct Database, API, or any method proposed by the vendor.



	31
	Phase III – Pg24
	Is State planning to use the existing database with necessary modifications or looking to develop a new database.  Please clarify


	The State is seeking a new solution through this RFP.    

	32
	Phase IV – Pg27
	Who is responsible for Functional Testing?  Please clarify
	Please see Phase IV, pg 27.  Functional Testing is stated under sub heading, “Contractor Responsibilities for Phase IV development of new system”.  



	33
	Phase IV – Pg27
	What is the duration State expects for Functional Testing?  Please provide the time boxed duration
	The State cannot provide this duration.



	34
	Phase IV – Pg27
	Who is responsible for Stress Testing?  Please clarify


	Please see Phase IV, pg 27.  Stress Testing is stated under sub heading, “Contractor Responsibilities for Phase IV development of new system”.  



	35
	Phase IV – Pg27
	What is the duration State expects for Stress Testing?  Please provide the time boxed duration
	The State cannot provide this duration.

	36
	Phase V – Pg29
	What is the duration State expects for User Acceptance Testing?  Please provide the time boxed duration
	User Acceptance Testing duration is directly governed by the quality of the product and how well it was designed and meets the stated requirements.  The State therefore cannot provide a time boxed duration. 



	37
	Reporting – Pg107
	Please provide the number of reports are needed in new system
	In addition to ad-hoc reporting capabilities, the known standard reports are listed in 6.1, Exhibit C, page 124.  The reports in 6.1 are a fair representation, but are not all inclusive.  The contractor may provide a cap on the reports that will be developed in their proposal.  



	38
	Interfaces – Pg109
	Please provide the number of interfaces to new system requires data exchange
	Please refer to the answer to Question # 30.



	39
	Importing External Data – Pg113
	Please provide the type and size of data formats that will be imported from external systems


	Please refer to the answer to Question #30 for the file interchanges in the system.    



	40
	Exhibit C; Req# 2.12

Req# 7.9
	Requirement states, “The new system shall allow online contract purchasers to sign electronically in compliance with State of Michigan E-Sign requirements”.  Please clarify what “sign electronically” means. Would a capability to check a checkbox indicating acceptance be sufficient towards this or do you require something more advanced? Please clarify your expectation.


	A response to this question will be posted in a future addendum.

	41
	Exhibit C; Req# 4.18
	Requirement states, “The new system will be able to print IRS Form 1099’s for students and create a 1099 e-file for IRS”.  Please clarify if State wants the e-file capability of 1099 to IRS from the system or a link to IRS website


	The system must be able to create a 1099 e-file from the system to submit to the IRS.  

	42
	General
	Please clarify, if States want to run a pilot before launch.  If yes, how many days should we budget towards the pilot?


	It is the intention of the State to operate the new system in parallel for a minimum of 45 days.



	43
	General
	Please confirm that the State wants to have complete ownership of the system source code upon completion of this project so that State has the ability to maintain and extend the system for future growth and change in business processes?


	See Technical Requirements, 3.3, Exhibit B, pg 102 and Section 2.260, pg 80.

	44
	General
	My firm has extensive experience developing custom finance applications that are transaction heavy.   My firm is also SEI CMMi Level 4.  

However, we may not have specific experience processing 529 plans or scholarship grants.   Will my firm be disqualified because my firm does not have specific 529 processing experience?
	In order to advance to step 2 of the evaluation process and be considered for award, vendors or their sub-contractor(s) as identified in Section 5.020 through 5.023 must meet the minimum mandatory requirements identified in Exhibit A.  

	45
	General
	The RFP mentions that the State is currently hosting current applications on Unisys A-Series and DMSII.    Please confirm that the new solution will not be using the legacy environment.


	The State will consider any viable solution that meets its needs. 

	46
	General
	The RFP states that the vendor must provide services on site at State’s facilities.   The RFP mentions 2 separate offices in Lansing, MI.   It would be beneficial to have all vendor resources work together in the same location.   Please confirm that the State will not separate the work location for the vendor team.


	The State will not separate the work location for the vendor team.

The vendor team may be required to travel between the two locations.

	47
	General
	The RFP provides high-level functional requirements.  Both the State and vendor will have a better understanding on the size, level of complexities, and scope of the system upon conclusion of detailed requirements gathering activities.    Please confirm that the vendor can propose a price adjustment to reflect the details learned once Business Requirements are completed.

 
	The State believes that the high-level functional requirements are comprehensive, and is asking the vendor to only validate these, and not start a new business requirement gathering activity. Any changes in scope will follow the change control process as described in section 1.403.

 

	48
	General
	If Vendor is proposing custom built solution, can the vendor propose to have some resources onsite in Lansing and some offsite located in vendor facilities? 


	See answer to Question #29

	49
	General
	Can vendor submit proposal using both onsite and offshore development for custom build solutions.


	See answer to Question #29

The State has a preference that all work be completed within the Continental United States.


	50
	General
	Please confirm that the State is responsible for data cleansing for the purpose of migrating data from legacy to new system.


	Yes, the State is responsible for all data cleansing for the purpose of migrating data from legacy to the new system.

	51
	General
	Can the State provide an application demo of the current system during the RFP process so that we can better assess the size and complexity of the system?


	No.  The new Bureau system is not a re-write of the current system.  Most of the functionality required in the requirements is not currently available in the current system.    



	52
	General
	For Custom Build solution, Please confirm the proposed solution should assume that Unisys A-Series, COBOL, XGEN, DMSII etc. will no longer be used and the new solution should assume new hardware etc.


	The State will consider any viable solution that meets the needs of the State.

	53
	General
	The RFP requires the vendor to complete Enterprise Architecture Review document and obtain State approval.   How many business days should Vendor budget in the project plan for obtaining State approvals?


	This will vary depending on the solution proposed. A typical timeframe is five business days.

	54
	General
	How many business days should Vendor budget for State to complete User Acceptance testing?


	Please see answer to Question #35 and 36.

	55
	General
	How many business days should Vendor budget for State to complete Training and Transition?


	The vendor is asked to review the contractor responsibilities and budget the number of days they estimate it will take to complete the tasks listed.

 

	56
	General
	For Custom Build Solutions, please confirm that the State will provide all necessary hardware, software, testing tools, VPN access, for vendor resources.


	See section 1.201 of the RFP

	57
	Exhibit H – Cost Table
	For custom build solutions – If vendors do not have a business model to sell hardware or software licenses (i.e. Microsoft, IBM Websphere, etc.), do the vendors need to complete Exhibit H Cost Table #7?


	Bidders are required to complete all applicable columns in the cost table.  The State reserves the right to purchase third party software and hardware through other existing State contracts.

	58
	Exhibit H – Cost Table
	Will vendors be disqualified if vendor is not authorized to sell hardware, software, as requested in Table #7?


	No.  Bidders must identify all hardware and software required for their solution. 

	59
	General
	For Custom Build Solutions, please identify which positions (i.e. Project Manager, Technical Architect, etc.) the RFP deems as “Key Personnel”?


	The State is asking the vendor to identify their key personnel in their proposal based on their proposed solution. 

	60
	Form 285
	The RFP did not contain a Form I-285.   Please confirm if vendors need to complete this form and submit at time of proposal submittal.   If yes, please provide ms word copy of this form.   


	This form is not required.

	61
	Exhibit C-2
	For Custom Build Solutions, are the proposed vendor solutions supposed to incorporate the items listed in Exhibit C-2 “Planned Future Enhancements”?


	Exhibit C-2 are not requirements for the current system, but lists the potential functionality overlap in the future for OSG systems.  The vendor may provide more information as requested in the bidder response on their intention to be the vendor for the future enhancements, and their approach to the future enhancements if they are interested in being the vendor.



	62
	Exhibit G
	For other MDIT custom build projects, the State has normally requested that vendors complete Enterprise Architecture Solution Assessment during Requirements Definition phase.   For vendors proposing Custom Build Solutions, are vendors responsible for completing Exhibit G as part of the proposal response?


	Yes

	63
	Exhibit C; Req# 1.4
	We understand that actuary could change file layouts.  Are these changes related to Data Types (ex: Numeric to Char), Data field length changes, Data field sequence of order change.  Please provide this information as this is very important to develop ETL functionality


	The Bureau has no control over the actuary file layouts.  The State uses the IBM ETL tool.  If ETL functionality is being developed, the vendor must include in the functionality standard ETL functions of defining the import fields, and mapping the fields to the database.



	64
	Data Conversion
	What will be the new Database?  Please provide the database name.


	See section 1.103, Environment.  

	65
	Performance Testing
	How many concurrent users will be using the application at a given time?  
	Please see requirement 18.1, Capacity, pg 109.



	66
	General
	Please provide the total number of anticipated users.
	Please see requirement 18.1, Capacity, pg 109.



	67
	Hardware & Software
	Please confirm that State will provide necessary hardware & software to vendor for executing develop and testing activities in this project


	See answer to Question # 56

	68
	FileNet
	Please provide the FileNet version that the State is using 


	Currently, FileNet Image Services 3.6.  MDIT anticipates to move to Image Manager 4.0 by Jan 1, 2010.



	69
	FileNet
	Is FileNet used for Document management or workflow process?  Please clarify.


	Currently for document management only.   

	70
	Hardware & Software
	Please confirm that vendor can propose to utilize the State procurement channel for Hardware & Software requirements


	Yes

	71
	RFP; Pg15
	We understand that State wants to replace the existing legacy system.  Is State looking to rewrite the existing system with the same processes and business rules or looking to reengineer the business process as part of this project.  Please clarify


	No. The State intends to take advantage of this opportunity to streamline processes.

	72
	RFP: Pg19 Current Enterprise Assets/Applications
	RFP states under current applications FileNet is used for electronic document management.  Please confirm if there are any document management requirements.  If yes, which of the requirements in Exhibit C belongs to those requirements


	No, there are no document management requirements in Exhibit C.



	73
	RFP; Pg19
	Is State using any third party payment processing methods currently?  Please provide details how payment processing is handled currently


	The State uses bank lock box for payments currently. The State also creates an ACH file internally for monthly purchases.  


	74
	RFP; Pg20

1.103; (i)
	RFP states, “Because this system will account for millions of receipts and payments, financial integrity is a very high priority”.  Please provide information on number of receipts and payments in a year


	As per the financial statement published for fiscal year 2008, the approximate receipts were $67 million representing approximately 3,500 contracts, and approximate payments made were $115 million for approximately 20,000 contracts.  



	75
	RFP; Pg21

Seven Phases of Work & Deliverables


	What is the anticipated duration for the review after each phase for State to provide approval
	See Section 2.250   

	76
	General
	Who developed the items specified in Exhibit C? 


	The workgroup established by the Project Steering committee.  

	77
	General
	Who did the state engaged towards developing the contents of his RFP?  If it is a vendor, please provide the name of the Vendor.  Is this vendor be allowed to bid?
	Business Solutions 21, Inc. They are not allowed to bid. 



	78
	Interfaces
	Are there any external interfaces to the this system


	Please refer to the answer to Question #26

	79
	Reports
	State identified around 25 reports in Exhibit C.  Please confirm that these are the only reports necessary for this project.


	Please refer to the answer to Question #37

	80
	Data Cleansing
	Please confirm that Data Cleansing & Quality of data is State’s responsibility and the vendor is responsible for New Data Models, Data Mapping & Data Migration
	Please refer to the answer to Question #50

	81
	RFP; Pg28
	For System, Integration, Functional and Stress testing, can the vendor propose an alternate sequence of testing based on industry standard and best practices?


	Yes

	82
	Performance Testing
	Will State provide the performance testing tools and load testing tools?
	Yes. The State uses Mercury.

	83
	General
	Are there any specific periods of time vendor must avoid or schedule activities that require significant participation from the state users


	The State and winning bidder will determine the project schedule.  The vendor must take into consideration any State furlough days as non-working days for State employees.  


	84
	RFP; Pg29
	RFP States “Participate in structured walkthroughs of deliverables of this phase”.  Are we any time responsible for code walk-through of our code along with State?  Please provide the details on state requirements for code review


	The State will review the code as stated in SOM’s responsibilities for Phase IV Development of New System, Pg 27.  

	85
	RFP; Pg30
	From above, will State perform code walk-through of all program components or only sample program components


	The State intends to perform code walk-through of sample program components, but reserves the right to include all code if deemed necessary.  



	86
	RFP; Pg35
	What is Debugging guide?  Please provide details of this


	“Debugging guide” is the “Troubleshooting documentation” that will help users identify and correct common problems and provide information on error messages in the system.  



	87
	RFP; Pg35
	Please provide requirements for Tutorial CD.  How many copies are required?


	Tutorial CD refers to the electronic version of the user guide.  One CD is required. 



	88
	RFP; Pg36

I(h)
	Please provide the following information to assess the hardware and software requirements

1. Number of users

2. Number of transactions per year

3. Percentage transactions growth per year

4. Number of concurrent users


	MET processes approximately 175,000 transactions annually, and growing about 1% a year. 

Please refer to requirement 18.1, Capacity, pg 109 for concurrent users expected.

	89
	RFP; Pg36

I(i)
	Please clarify the deliverables and responsibilities of acceptance criteria during the 90-day production run


	The responsibilities of the vendor during the 90 day period are stated on page 35 and 36. 

	90
	RFP; Pg38

Travel
	Please clarify if the vendor need to travel for gathering requirements? If so, please indicate locations where travel will be required.


	The locations for work are identified in Section 1.201, item 1.

	91
	Exhibit C

8.1 through 8.4

10.2 through 10.5
	In Section 1.103 (b), the vendor is asked to use MDIT Single Login per the Enterprise IT security policy.  

Items 8.1 to 8.4 and 10.2 to 10.5 define password related business rules.  If a Single Login system is used the application may not have control over password reset and complexity rules.  Please clarify which login technology is to be used:  MDIT Single Logon or a custom application Logon System.


	A response to this question will be posted in a future addendum.

	92
	
	Which Languages (English, Spanish, other) must be designed for?


	English

	93
	
	Please identify the functions that are currently supported for the existing interfaces

· Web interface to customer (Create account, edit account, purchase contract,  others)

· Internal functions  using Project One (review purchase, approve?, edit ? , others)

· Legacy MET system (Unisys system) (release contract?, edit contract?, others?)
	The following functions are currently supported:

a) Web Interface – Allows for contract purchase online.

b) Project One – Review contracts submitted online, approve contract purchase.

c) Legacy System is the main system that handles all the contract processing and includes all functions related to contract throughout the contract lifecycle. 



	94
	
	Is there any desire to leverage the existing Web interface functions written in ASP in the new solution?

Is there any technical reason they should not be used as part of the new solution?
	No

	95
	
	Does SOM have a preference for use of COTS vs custom developed solution?

If preference is for COTS, is there a particular COTS package that SOM has a preference for?
	See answer for Question #24

	96
	
	Can you estimate how many input forms (web) will be needed?


	See Exhibit C, Functional Requirements.

	97
	
	Can you estimate how many output forms (print or pdf) will be needed?


	See Exhibit C, Functional Requirements.

	98
	Section 1.103 Environment


	MDIT requires that its single - login security environment be used for all new client-server software development.

Question:

Given the fact that the system is going to integrate with the State single login system, would it be correct to respond to the technical requirements in Exhibit B sections 8.2 – 8.4 as integrating with the single login system rather than developing these features as part of the system?
	A response to this question will be posted in a future addendum.

	99
	
	Please confirm whether the State will allow development work to be completed off-site at the vendor’s location.


	Please refer to the answer to Question #29

	100
	Exhibit C – Requirement 2.1, 8.1
	The new system shall allow customers to make contract purchases online.  
(NOTE: Currently, this functionality is available - see http://www.setwithmet.com.  The current functionality is limited and does not integrate with State’s Centralized Electronic Payment Authorization System (CEPAS).  
Question:

The state requires the system to integrate with CEPAS.  Would you please provide additional information on how external systems communicate with CEPAS?
	A response to this question will be posted in a future addendum.

	101
	Exhibit C – Requirement 8.5-8.7
	Question:  Will the State please provide an overview of Irma, FileNet and the Tidal Scheduling tool?


	A response to this question will be posted in a future addendum.

	102
	
	Section 2.10 states “Business rules governing the contract type changes shall be user configurable. (Note: Configurable here means that no programming changes will be required.”

Section 4.8 says “The new system shall allow the formulas to calculate contract benefits and payment schedules to be configurable by MET staff.  (Note Configurable means that no code changes will be required).”

Question:  Will the State please provide more information on the level of configuration required. For example, does the State require selections from field lists to create formulas, or something more like code generation?


	The reference to the “business rules for contract type changes” in requirement 2.10 refer to the requirement for the contract type change stated in requirement 2.9 

which states “Contract type should be allowed to be changed from one type to another.”  

	103
	
	Section 6.1 says “The new system shall be able to generate the standard reports, including, but not limited to,” then goes on to list 23 such reports. 

Question: will the State define the other reports referred to by the “not limited to” language, or consider a cap on the quantity of reports if they are all not yet defined?


	Refer to the answer in Question #37

	104
	
	8.3 - 8.7 make reference to a number of SoM file formats, including:

(a) TIAA-CREF file for the Michigan Education Savings Program (MESP) 

(b) Mailing Address File for DMB Print Services

(c) State’s Michigan Administrative Information Network (MAIN) system

(d) Student Reports for higher education institutions. 

The new system shall be compatible with the State’s imaging system, IRMA.

The new system shall be compatible with FileNet.

The State uses Tidal Scheduling tool.  The new system shall be compatible with the Tidal Scheduling tool.

Question: will the State please provide more information on these file formats?


	All of the files are delimited text files.




	105
	
	Exhibit G, Enterprise Architecture Solution Assessment, on page 137 must be filled out by the vendor. However, some sections in the table in the exhibit state “To be completed by SOM prior to inclusion in RFP.” Are these forms complete as shown in the RFP or does the State intend to provide more information on them prior to RFP response?


	Bidder may leave those areas blank.

	106
	
	Page 22 states: “The Contractor will hold Joint Application Development (JAD) sessions to verify and validate the documentation on the current system and to document potential enhancements for the new system.”

Page 45 states: “The Contractor may be asked to provide additional hours, but not to exceed 1200 hours during the term of the contract for enhancements and modifications to the new system resulting from state and federal legislative mandates, grant requirements, and changes to the network, security, or new system platform.

Question: Does the State intend for the “potential enhancements” identified during the JADs to be funded through the 1,200 block of hours, or should a separate amount of hours be quoted for enhancements that are defined during JAD? 

Question: Will the State provide an estimated quantity of hours that will be used to document potential enhancements during the JAD sessions?

Question: will the State limit the number of enhancements that will emerge from the JAD sessions or fix the development of enhancements to a specific hour figure.


	The intention of the State is to limit the scope of the project to the agreed upon contractual requirements.  The 1200 hours may be used if additional scope is identified for enhancements or modifications to requirements.  

	107
	
	Can we get a diagram of the current SFS, OSG, MESP, MET, etc. architecture?


	No. The system is not a re-write of the current system, and the vendor is advised to propose the new system based on the requirements as defined in Exhibit B,C and D. 



	108
	
	Sect. 1.300 - Are we expected to document our approach to the project management/control items… i.e. risk, issue, reporting, etc.?


	The bidder shall respond as directed in the individual sections and the bidder checklist on Pg 2.



	109
	
	Sect 1.002 – Do the Functional Requirements established in this RFP provide adequate foundation for potential expansion to OSG programs from the State’s perspective?


	Yes.  Exhibit C-2 lists all of the potential common functions with OSG programs at this time. 

	110
	
	Article 3.0 – Is estimated pricing required as part of this bid submission?  


	Article 3.0 contains an overview of the bid process and evaluation criteria.



	111
	
	Article 3.0 – Are electronic proposals to be submitted on CD in word format only or can it be in the form of a PDF file?


	Bidders shall submit their proposals following the requirements provided in Section 3.062 Proposal Submission.

	112
	
	Can you clarify the following statement in the requirements document?  

Req 14.2 - The new system's internal control functionality shall ensure that the data entry and processing associated with a business event has been completed before updating the database.

	The requirement is intended to convey that the system will have data integrity when completing a business process. 

For example, if a business process requires entry on multiple forms, and/or database lookups and transactions, all processes related to the event must be completed and verified that they are completed correctly before the database is updated, thereby maintaining the integrity of the database.  



	113
	
	Would the state consider other financial systems experience in lieu of Student Financial Systems specifically for acceptance in this response?


	Please refer to the answer to Question #44

	114
	
	Can a solution be suggested involving extension and integration with the current Siebel CRM System used by the State? The purpose is to reduce duplication of data entry and to reduce duplication of functionality. (Assuming the Siebel system is used to capture Student/Parent Info)


	The State will consider any solution that meets the needs of the State.

	115
	
	Will the State continue to use the current licenses of software (Oracle Databases  currently being utilized by the Web Interface Program used by MET?)


	Vendors bidding Oracle software should include pricing for Oracle licenses in their proposal.

	116
	
	In Appendix “H” for the cost breakdowns, is the state suggesting a T&M approach or a fixed price bid approach?   If the contractor recommends a fixed price bid approach is the application development breakdown of costs (by resource type) still required?  (that approach suggested a T&M strategy).   


	The resulting contract will be a fixed price deliverable based contract. 

The breakdown of costs by resource type requested in Appendix H, is required. 

	117
	
	As stated on page 92, section 3.055 Proposal Format, “Bidders must respond to all sections of the RFP and proposals should be formatted to include each of the following sections.”

Can you please clarify the specific format required?

i. Is it required of us to include the entire RFP document as written (pages 1-153) with our responses immediately following each Article and / or Exhibit? Or, 

ii. Should the order of our proposal response only include and follow the exact order of the “Bidder Technical Proposal Checklist” on page 2?
	Bidders are required to format their proposals as described on Page 2 of the RFP.
i. Yes

ii. Yes
Section 3.055 of the RFP is replaced by the following:

3.055
Proposal Format

Bidders must respond to all sections of the RFP.  Failure to respond to every Article could result in disqualification from the bidding process.  Proposals shall should be formatted to include each of the following sections the sections identified on page 2 of the RFP,  clearly identified using the same format as the RFP is written in and with the appropriate headings as described in the PROPOSAL FORMATTING REQUIREMENTS

	118
	
	How many staff currently work with MET and what are their roles


	Please refer to the answer to Question #15

	119
	
	Is there a defined budget for this project?  If so, what is the amount?


	The State cannot release project budget information.

	120
	
	Is there a timeframe that the SOM would like this to be implemented in.  Would work start immediately after contract agreement in September? And is there a specific date the SOM would like this new system be put into production?


	See answer to Question #19 and #20.

	121
	
	How many new student contracts are anticipated to be created annually over the next several years


	See answer to Question #6.

	122
	
	Section 1.101 item #1 mentions new programs.  Are these new MET programs or OSG programs – if MET, please clarify what these are?


	The Legislature may add or remove any number of student financial programs, but MET is the focus of this bid, and has been operational since 1988.



	123
	
	Page 14 section 1.1.04 mentions training – for internal users.  Are external users included as well such as staff at higher ed institutions?


	Vendors are not required to train external users.

	124
	
	Page 36 states that work shall be performed, completed and managed in Lansing and Dimondale – does this mean the SOM would like all team members on-site all times.  If a custom development solution is proposed, and it’s more cost efficient to not have all developers on site, would this be an acceptable solution to the SOM?


	Please refer to the answer to Question # 90

	125
	
	Are any federal funds being used to pay for this RFP?


	The funding sources for this project are not relevant to the vendor’s proposal.

	126
	
	Several of the service level agreements require response within 2 and 4 hrs (page 133, items 9 and 10).   What is the period that these remain in effect – through implementation? warranty ? or something different?


	These are the terms of the Service Level Agreements to remain in effect as long as the SLA is in effect.

Service level requirements 9 and 10, identified on page 133, are only applicable on State of Michigan working days. Vendors should recommend various service level response times, and may note the different pricing options for the State.

	127
	
	Can you please elaborate further on how extensively Microsoft Dynamics Solomon is used within MET?  Is it a technology that could be incorporated in to the replacement system or something used just for a specific purpose?  We did not find Solomon listed in the State of Michigan standards and would like to verify authorization to consider using it or another Dynamics accounting package such as AX or GP.


	A response to this question will be posted in a future addendum.

	128
	
	Please confirm the scope of section 1.103 h related to Portal Technology Tools.  Is the intent that the externally facing website used to view and purchase information about MET qualifies as the portal technology?  Would the internally facing tools used to manage the solution be expected to rely on this same technology?


	Yes.

	129
	
	Does the SOM already own the licenses required to provide an additional portal environment to be built using the IBM web content management tools, or should we plan to include those costs in our proposal?
	Access to web functionality will be granted through www.michigan.gov.



	130
	
	Section 1.103 h states all contractors will be subject to Enterprise Architecture review and approval at the State’s request.  Will any sort of review be done prior to selection of a vendor or will all activity occur post selection?  Upon selection as the vendor, can we assume the technologies listed in our proposal response to be OK for use?
	A preliminary review will be conducted by the Joint Evaluation Committee prior to awarding the contract, which will include an initial review by the Enterprise Architecture Core Team.

Any changes in technology would have to be approved by Enterprise Architecture Core Team once the project begins. 

	131
	
	We understand the State’s FileNET environment would be used for any document imaging.  Is it anticipated that many paper based processes will remain in the replacement system or will forms be replaced with electronic forms and the images kept for historical reference only?


	The State intends to reduce paper based processes in the new system.  One of the ways to reduce the paper processes is to provide online submission of forms.   Images from paper processes will be stored for historical purposes.  The State uses IRMA to store these images for MET.

The State is open to any proposals that incorporate any of the State’s document management systems.



	132
	
	The RFP requests that use case documentation be provided.  We were unable to find samples defining a use case as defined and expected by the State of Michigan.  Is a sample use case template available so we know the type of documentation we’ll be expected to produce?


	No. 

The State and vendor will agree on the use case format during the project.

	133
	
	What is the timeframe for considering bringing the OSG functionality in to the replacement system?


	The State intends to consider OSG functionality only after a successful completion of MET.

	134
	
	Section 1.2 of the RFP indicates the location of work is expected to be in one of two State of Michigan locations.  Does that also apply if the proposed replacement system is a custom built solution?  Are development activities expected to be performed onsite?


	Please refer to the answer to question #90

	135
	
	Requirement 6.6 of Exhibit C speaks to sending broadcast messages to all customers or specific customers.  Is this functionality intended to be informative or more for email marketing tied to specific awareness campaigns?


	Both, informative and marketing purposes.

	136
	
	The requirements specify a 10 second load time metric.  Can you please elaborate how this will be monitored for compliance?


	The State has performance monitoring tools that may be used for monitoring compliance with this requirement.

	137
	
	The Service Level Requirements state and expectation of 15 second or less transactions 90% of the time.  Can you please elaborate on how this will specifically be measured on a monthly basis?  Is it the responsibility of the State or the vendor to report on this information?
	See response to Question #136.

The State will be responsible to validate compliance with this SLA.

	138
	
	Should we consider gaining input from actual application users in the field during the design process?  Would the SOM consider having actual application users test the system during the user acceptance testing phase?
	No, only the internal users (State assigned staff) will test the system

	139
	
	How many testers does the SOM anticipate having during user acceptance testing?


	The vendor should recommend a number based on prior experience implementing similar solutions. The State will provide at least 5 testers during UAT.

	140
	
	Does the SOM anticipate having Help documentation incorporated into the application?  


	Yes

	141
	
	Does the SOM anticipate having Online tutorials for students and/or universities or is this considered outside the scope of the project?
	This is not a requirement.

	142
	
	Are the online query requirements for a user specified or is this ad-hoc reporting (13 c)?


	The State is not able to locate this referenced requirement. 

	143
	
	Should the MET contract types be configurable by a student, set of students or by contract type (1.8)?


	By contract type

	144
	
	Is the contract fulfillment process via mail manually entered into the system by MET staff (4.3)?


	Yes, by data entry staff.

	145
	
	Are High-Ed institutions submitting payment online through a text file, attachment or form – by student or lump sum (4.10)?


	Currently, the Higher-Ed institutions do not submit payments online.  The State pays Higher-Ed students based on the invoices submitted manually, or via an Excel spreadsheet.  The in-state invoices are processed through an invoice entered in an Excel spreadsheet and imported into the system.  The out-of-state invoices are entered manually.



	146
	
	What data is shared between MET and OSG? Tuition Rates, student data, enrollment data, others?  Assumption is a student record begins in the MET system and eventually is added to the OSG system?
	See 1.101, 3 and Exhibit C-2.

This assumption is incorrect.



	147
	
	In the case of a vendor not having specific experience implementing student financial services systems, would the State allow that vendor to respond and consider that vendor to have satisfied the mandatory requirements in Exhibit A if the vendor secures the services of a single individual who has that experience and is intimately familiar with the associated state and federal regulations to join their project team?
	See response to Question #44.
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